
SULLIVAN COUNTY RESORT FACILITIES LOCAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
548 Broadway 

Monticello, New York 12701 
(845) 428-7575 - Voice 
(845) 428-7577 - Fax 

TTY 711 
www.sullivanrfldc.com  

 
SPECIAL MEETING NOTICE 

TO:  Howard Siegel, Chairman and Treasurer/ Chief Financial Officer 
  Kathleen Lara, Vice Chairperson and Secretary 

Philip Vallone, Assistant Secretary 
Scott Smith, Assistant Treasurer 

  Paul Guenther, Member 
  Sean Brooks, Member 
  Ira Steingart, Member and Chief Executive Officer 
  Joseph Perrello, Member 
  Edward T. Sykes, Member 
  Chairman and Members of the Sullivan County Legislature 
  Josh Potosek, Sullivan County Manager 
  Walter Garigliano, Esq., SCRFLDC Counsel 
FROM:  Jennifer Flad, Executive Director 
DATE:  September 5, 2025 
 
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that there will be a Special Meeting of the Sullivan County Resort Facilities Local Development 
Corporation scheduled as follows: 
 
DATE: Monday, September 8, 2025 
TIME: 11:10 AM 
LOCATION: Legislative Committee Room, Sullivan County Government Center, 100 North Street, Monticello, New 
York 12701 
 
Meeting documents will be posted on Sullivan County Resort Facilities Local Development Corporation’s website. 
 
This meeting will also be livestreamed on Sullivan County Resort Facilities Local Development Corporation’s 
YouTube Channel. 
 
 
 
 
 

SEE REVERSE FOR AGENDA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.sullivanrfldc.com/
https://www.sullivanrfldc.com/meetings/
https://www.youtube.com/@SullivanCountyResortFacilities


SULLIVAN COUNTY RESORT FACILITIES LOCAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
548 Broadway 

Monticello, New York 12701 
(845) 428-7575 - Voice 
(845) 428-7577 - Fax 

TTY 711 
www.sullivanrfldc.com  

 
SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA-- AMENDED 

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 8, 2025, 11:10 AM 
 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
II. ROLL CALL 
III. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES 

August 11, 2025 Special Meeting 
IV. BILLS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
V. NEW BUSINESS 

1. Resolution: Authorizing the Engagement of Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP as Independent Counsel to 
Provide an Opinion to Prospective Investors 

2. Resolution: Amending Resolution No. 04-25 Which Approved the Issuance of the Series 2025 Bonds in 
the Maximum Principal Amount of up to $570,000,000 to Approve an Issuance of up to $585,000,000 

3.    Any and All Other Business Before the Board 
VI. PUBLIC COMMENT AND ADJOURN  
 
## 

http://www.sullivanrfldc.com/


 

- 1 - 

Sullivan County Resort Facilities Local Development Corporation 
548 Broadway 

Monticello, New York 12701 
(845) 428-7575 – telephone 

(845) 428-7577 – fax 

 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

August 11, 2025 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
Chairman Siegel called to order the special meeting of the Sullivan County Resort Facilities Local Development 

Corporation at approximately 9:12 AM in the Legislative Committee Room at the Sullivan County Government 

Center, 100 North Street, Monticello, New York 12701. 
 

II.      ROLL CALL 
Members Present-                       Members Absent-   

Howard Siegel        

Kathleen Lara       
Philip Vallone (Via Videoconference) 

Scott Smith       Joseph Perrello  (Entered during the meeting)                                             
Paul Guenther (Via Videoconference) 

Sean Brooks 
Ira Steingart 

Edward Sykes 

             
                  

Staff Present-                               Staff Absent-    
Jennifer Flad, Executive Director    None 

Ira Steingart, Chief Executive Officer 

 Julio Garaicoechea, Project Manager 
Bethanii Padu, Economic Development Coordinator 

 
Others Present- 

Walter F. Garigliano, SCRFLDC Counsel  

Robert Freehill, County Attorney 
Shawn Griffin, Bond Counsel (Via Videoconference)   

   
 

III.  NEW BUSINESS 
Ms. Flad noted that Mr. Vallone and Mr. Guenther would be participating in the meeting via videoconference 

in accordance with the Agency’s videoconferencing policy, due to extraordinary circumstances involving 

physical disability.  
 

On a motion made by Ms. Lara and seconded by Mr. Smith, the Board entered executive session to discuss 
the financial history of a particular corporation at approximately 9:13 AM. 

 

On a motion made by Mr. Smith and seconded by Ms. Lara, the Board exited executive session at 
approximately 10:30 AM.  

 
Mr. Perrello joined the meeting. 

 
Chairman Siegel asked the Board members whether they had the opportunity to review the proposed 

documents for the issuance of bonds relating to the Resorts World Catskills companies over the past few 

days, and whether, after reviewing and discussing them, they felt they had a clear understanding of the 
nature of the transaction. All Board members responded yes. 

 
On a motion made by Mr. Steingart and seconded by Mr. Sykes, the Board reviewed and discussed a 

resolution approving and requesting an amendment of SCRFLDC’s Certificate of Incorporation to add six 



 

- 2 - 

additional parcels. Chairman Siegel called the motion to question, the Board voted, and the resolution was 
unanimously approved.  

 
On a motion made by Mr. Brooks and seconded by Ms. Lara, the Board reviewed and discussed a resolution 

authorizing the purchase of certain assets from Montreign Operating Company LLC, Empire Resorts 

Real Estate I LLC, Empire Resorts Real Estate II, and the execution of an agreement of Purchase and 
Sale. Chairman Siegel called the motion to question, the Board voted, and the resolution was unanimously 

approved. 
 

On a motion made by Mr. Sykes and seconded by Mr. Smith, the Board reviewed and discussed a resolution 
authorizing the acquisition of non-gaming resort assets to promote economic development purposes; 

financing through the issuance, execution, sale and delivery of SCRFLDC tax revenue bonds Series 2025 

in the maximum aggregate principal amount up to $570,000,000; and the execution and delivery of related 
documents. Chairman Siegel called the motion to question, the Board voted, and the resolution was 

unanimously approved. 
 

On a motion made by Mr. Perrello and seconded by Mr. Brooks, the Board reviewed and discussed a 

resolution authorizing the establishment of a General Assessment District. Chairman Siegel called the 
motion to question, the Board voted, and the resolution was unanimously approved.  

 
On a motion made by Mr. Steingart and seconded by Mr. Sykes, the Board reviewed and discussed a 

resolution authorizing an agreement for providing economic development services to County of Sullivan 
Industrial Development Agency. Chairman Siegel called the motion to question, the Board voted, and 

the resolution was unanimously approved. 

 
On a motion made by Mr. Vallone and seconded by Mr. Guenther, the Board reviewed and discussed a 

resolution authorizing the engagement of Montreign Operating Company LLC to manage the resort. 
Chairman Siegel called the motion to question, the Board voted, and the resolution was unanimously 

approved.  

 
On a motion made by Mr. Sykes and seconded by Mr. Vallone, the Board reviewed and discussed a resolution 

authorizing execution of a sublease agreement relating to real property owned by Montreign Operating 
Company LLC and execution of a deferred payments subordination agreement. Chairman Siegel called the 

motion to question, the Board voted, and the resolution was unanimously approved. 

 
On a motion made by Mr. Siegel and seconded by Mr. Guenther, the Board reviewed and discussed a 

resolution authorizing execution of a sublease agreement relating to real property owned by Montreign 
Operating Company LLC and leased to Empire Resorts Real Estate I LLC and execution of a deferred 

payments subordination agreement. Chairman Siegel called the motion to question, the Board voted, and 
the resolution was unanimously approved. 

 

On a motion made by Mr. Smith and seconded by Ms. Lara, the Board reviewed and discussed a resolution 
authorizing execution of a sublease agreement relating to real property owned by Montreign Operating 

Company LLC and leased to Empire Resorts Real Estate II LLC and execution of a deferred payments 
subordination agreement. Chairman Siegel called the motion to question, the Board voted, and the resolution 

was unanimously approved. 

 
On a motion made by Mr. Perrello and seconded by Mr. Brooks, the Board reviewed and discussed a 

resolution authorizing engagement of Cooper Arias LLP to provide accounting support to SCRFLDC. 
Chairman Siegel called the motion to question, the Board voted, and the resolution was unanimously 

approved. 
 

On a motion made by Mr. Smith and seconded by Mr. Steingart, the Board reviewed and discussed a 

resolution authorizing engagement of UHY LLP as auditors for the periods ending December 31, 2025 and 
December 31, 2026. Chairman Siegel called the motion to question, the Board voted, and the resolution was 

unanimously approved. 
 

IV.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES  



 

- 3 - 

On a motion made Mr. Perrello and seconded by Mr. Guenther, the Board voted and unanimously approved 
the July 14, 2025 special meeting minutes.  

 
V.  ADJOURN  

On a motion made by Mr. Brooks and seconded by Ms. Lara, the Board adjourned the meeting at 

approximately 10:46 AM.  
 

 
 

Respectfully submitted: 
 Bethanii Padu, Economic Development Coordinator 



70354-086v2 

RESOLUTION 
 
A meeting of the Sullivan County Resort Facilities Local Development Corporation 

(“SCRFLDC”) was convened in public session at the Sullivan County Government Center, 100 
North Street, Monticello, New York on September 8, 2025 at 11:10 a.m. local time. 

 
The meeting was called to order by Chairman Howard Siegel, and, upon roll being called, 

the following members of SCRFLDC were: 
 

     PRESENT  ABSENT   
   
 Howard Siegel   [     ]  [     ]  
 Kathleen Lara   [     ]  [     ]   
 Philip Vallone   [     ]  [     ]   
 Scott Smith   [      ]  [     ]   
 Paul Guenther                         [     ]  [     ]   
 Sean Brooks   [     ]  [     ]   
 Ira Steingart   [     ]  [     ]   
 Joseph Perrello  [     ]  [     ]   
 Edward T. Sykes  [     ]  [     ]   
 
 The following persons were also present: 
 Jennifer M. Flad, Executive Director 
 Ira Steingart, Chief Executive Officer 
 Julio Garaicoechea, Project Manager 
 Bethanii Padu, Economic Development Coordinator 
 Walter F. Garigliano, General Counsel 
  
 The following resolution was duly offered by _______________, and seconded by 
___________, to wit: 

Resolution No. ____ - 2025  
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ENGAGEMENT OF NORTON 
ROSE FULBRIGHT US LLP AS INDEPENDENT COUNSEL TO 

PROVIDE AN OPINION TO PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 1411 of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law ("N-PCL") 
of the State of New York (the "State"), as amended (hereinafter collectively referred to as the 
"Act"), and pursuant to its Certificate of Incorporation filed on April 25, 2025 (the “Certificate”), 
SCRFLDC was established as a not-for-profit local development corporation of the State with 
the authority and power to own, lease and sell personal and real property for the purposes of, 
among other things, acquiring, constructing and equipping certain projects exclusively in 
furtherance of the charitable or public purposes of relieving and reducing unemployment, 
promoting and providing for additional and maximum employment, bettering and maintaining 
job opportunities, instructing or training individuals to improve or develop their capabilities for 
such jobs, by encouraging the development of, or retention of, an industry in the community or 
area, and lessening the burdens of government and acting in the public interest; and 
 



WHEREAS, SCRFLDC has determined it to be in the public interest and intends to 
purchase certain assets of Montreign Operating Company, LLC, a New York limited liability 
company (“MOC”), Empire Resorts Real Estate I, LLC, a New York limited liability company 
("ERREI") and Empire Resorts Real Estate II, LLC, a New York limited liability company 
("ERREII" and together with MOC and ERREI, collectively, the “Resort”) pursuant to the terms 
of a proposed Agreement of Purchase and Sale, by and among MOC, ERREI, ERREII and 
SCRFLDC (“PSA”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, to finance the purchase of the various assets described in the PSA, 
SCRFLDC intends to issue its tax-exempt bonds, Series 2025 (“Bonds”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, prospective bond purchasers have requested SCRFLDC engage independent 
counsel to analyze the collateral and remedies under the financing documents related to the 
Bonds; and 
 
 WHEREAS, SCRFLDC desires to engage Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP (“Norton Rose 
Fulbright”) as independent counsel (“Independent Counsel”) to analyze the collateral and 
remedies under the financing documents related to the Bonds; and 
 
 WHEREAS, SCRFLDC desires to authorize its Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and 
Executive Director (the “Authorized Officers”) to engage Norton Rose Fulbright to act as 
Independent Counsel in providing the requested analysis. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED as follows:   
 
Section 1.  The Authorized Officers of SCRFLDC are hereby authorized and directed to 

engage Norton Rose Fulbright to analyze the collateral and remedies under the 
financing documents related to the Bonds. 

 
Section 2. All acts heretofore undertaken and performed on behalf of SCRFLDC related to 

the engagement of Norton Rose Fulbright are hereby ratified, approved and 
confirmed. 

 
Section 3. This resolution shall take effect immediately. 
 
 The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to a vote on roll 
call, which resulted as follows: 
 Howard Siegel   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Kathleen Lara   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Philip Vallone   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Scott Smith   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Paul Guenther   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Sean Brooks   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Ira Steingart   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Joseph Perrello  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Edward T. Sykes  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 
 The resolutions were thereupon duly adopted. 



 
STATE OF NEW YORK : 
              :SS 
COUNTY OF SULLIVAN    : 
 
 I, the undersigned Secretary of SCRFLDC, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT: 
 
1. I have compared the foregoing copy of a resolution of the Sullivan County Resort 

Facilities Local Development Corporation (“SCRFLDC”) with the original thereof on 
file in the office of SCRFLDC, and that the same is a true and correct copy of such 
resolution and of the proceedings of SCRFLDC in connection with such matter. 

 
2. Such resolution was passed at a meeting of SCRFLDC duly convened in public session 

on September 8, 2025 at 11:10 a.m. at the Sullivan County Government Center, 100 
North Street, Village of Monticello, Sullivan County, New York, at which the following 
members were present: 

     PRESENT  ABSENT   
   
 Howard Siegel   [     ]  [     ]  
 Kathleen Lara   [     ]  [     ]   
 Philip Vallone   [     ]  [     ]   
 Scott Smith   [      ]  [     ]   
 Paul Guenther                         [     ]  [     ]   
 Sean Brooks   [     ]  [     ]   
 Ira Steingart   [     ]  [     ]   
 Joseph Perrello  [     ]  [     ]   
 Edward T. Sykes  [     ]  [     ]   
 
3. The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to a vote on roll 

call which resulted as follows: 
 
 Howard Siegel   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Kathleen Lara   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Philip Vallone   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Scott Smith   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Paul Guenther   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Sean Brooks   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Ira Steingart   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Joseph Perrello  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Edward T. Sykes  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 
 and therefore, the resolution was declared duly adopted. 
 
  
 

  



 I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all members of SCRFLDC had due notice of said 
meeting, (ii) pursuant to Sections 103(a) and 104 of the Public Officers Law (Open Meetings 
Law), said meeting was open to the general public and public notice of the time and place of said 
meeting was duly given in accordance with such Sections 103(a) and 104, (iii) the meeting in all 
respects was duly held, and (iv) there was a quorum present throughout. 
       
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal on the 8th day of 
September, 2025. 
 
       __________________________________ 
       Kathleen Lara, Secretary 
  
 
  
 



RESOLUTION 

A regular meeting of the Sullivan County Resort Facilities Local Development Corporation 
("Issuer") was convened on Monday, September 8, 2025, at 11:10 a.m. local time at the Sullivan 
County Government Center, 100 North Street, Monticello, New York 12701. 

PRESENT ABSENT 

Howard Siegel  [    ] [    ] 
Kathleen Lara  [    ] [    ] 
Philip Vallone  [    ] [    ] 
Scott Smith  [    ] [    ] 
Paul Guenther  [    ] [    ] 
Sean Brooks  [    ] [    ] 
Ira Steingart  [    ] [    ] 
Joseph Perrello [    ] [    ] 
Edward T. Sykes [    ] [    ] 

The following persons were also present: 
Jennifer M. Flad, Executive Director  
Ira Steingart, Chief Executive Officer 
Julio Garaicoechea, Project Manager 
Bethanii Padu, Economic Development Coordinator 
Walter F. Garigliano, Issuer General Counsel 

The following resolution was duly offered by ___________, and seconded 
by _______________, to wit: 

Resolution No. ___ - 25 

RESOLUTION OF THE ISSUER AMENDING RESOLUTION  
NO. 04-25 WHICH APPROVED THE ISSUANCE OF THE SERIES 2025 

BONDS IN THE MAXIMUM PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF UP TO $570,000,000 
TO APPROVE AN ISSUANCE OF UP TO $585,000,000 

All capitalized terms not herein defined shall have the respective meanings ascribed thereto 
in Resolution No. 04–25, adopted by the Issuer on August 11, 2025 (the "August 11 Bond 
Resolution").  Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed 
thereto in Resolution No. 04-25. 

WHEREAS, the Issuer reasonably expects that it will (i) pay or incur certain capital 
expenditures in connection with the Project prior to the issuance of the Series 2025 Bonds, (ii) use 
funds from sources other than proceeds of the Series 2025 Bonds which are or will be available on 
a short-term basis to pay for such capital expenditures (iii) reimburse itself for the use of such 
funds with proceeds of the Series 2025 Bonds and (iv) issue the Series 2025 Bonds or other 
obligations for costs of the Project in the maximum principal amount of $585,000,000.  



2 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF ISSUER AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
 
Section 1. To accommodate closing costs and give flexibility at the time of pricing to 

accommodate original issue discount, the references to $570,000,000 in Resolution 
No. 04-25 are hereby amended to be $585,000,000. 

Section 2. The officers, employees and agents of the Issuer are hereby authorized and directed 
for and in the name and on behalf of the Issuer to do all acts and things required 
and to execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, to pay 
all such fees, charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may 
be necessary or, in the opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable 
and proper to effect the purposes of the foregoing resolutions and to cause 
compliance by the Issuer with all of the terms, covenants and provisions of the 
documents executed for and on behalf of the Issuer. 

Section 3. This Resolution shall take effect immediately. 

 The question of adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call, 
which resulted as follows: 
 
 Howard Siegel   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Kathleen Lara   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Philip Vallone   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Scott Smith   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Paul Guenther   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Sean Brooks   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Ira Steingart   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Joseph Perrello  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Edward T. Sykes  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 
 The resolution was thereupon duly adopted. 
  



3 
 

 
  
STATE OF NEW YORK : 
              :SS 
COUNTY OF SULLIVAN    : 
 
 I, the undersigned Secretary of the Issuer DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT: 
 
1. I have compared the foregoing copy of a resolution of the Sullivan County Resort Facilities 

Local Development Corporation (“Issuer”) with the original thereof on file in the office of 
the Issuer, and that the same is a true and correct copy of such resolution and of the 
proceedings of the Issuer in connection with such matter. 

 
2. Such resolution was passed at a meeting of the Issuer duly convened in public session on 

September 8, 2025 at 11:10 a.m. at the Sullivan County Government Center, 100 North 
Street, Village of Monticello, Sullivan County, New York, at which the following members 
were present: 

     PRESENT  ABSENT 
   
 Howard Siegel   [     ]  [     ] 
 Kathleen Lara   [    ]  [     ] 
 Philip Vallone   [     ]  [     ] 
 Scott Smith   [      ]  [     ] 
 Paul Guenther                         [     ]  [     ] 
 Sean Brooks   [     ]  [     ]  
 Ira Steingart   [     ]  [     ] 
 Joseph Perrello  [     ]  [     ] 
 Edward T. Sykes  [     ]  [     ] 
 
 
3. The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call 

which resulted as follows: 
 
 Howard Siegel   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Kathleen Lara   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Philip Vallone   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Scott Smith   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Paul Guenther   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Sean Brooks   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Ira Steingart   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Joseph Perrello  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Edward T. Sykes  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 
 and therefore, the resolution was declared duly adopted. 
 
  



4 
 

 I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all members of the Issuer had due notice of said meeting, 
(ii) pursuant to Sections 103(a) and 104 of the Public Officers Law (Open Meetings Law), said 
meeting was open to the general public and public notice of the time and place of said meeting 
was duly given in accordance with such Sections 103(a) and 104, (iii) the meeting in all respects 
was duly held, and (iv) there was a quorum present throughout. 
       
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal on the 8th day of 
September, 2025. 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Kathleen Lara, Secretary 
  
 
  
 

 
 

 
 

 






















	Meeting Notice and AMENDED Agenda
	Draft Minutes 8-11-25
	Proposed Resolution: Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP
	Proposed Resolution: Amending Resolution 04-25
	Resolution 04-25 Adopted 8-11-25

